
 
From: Marisa Planells-Valero 
Sent: Saturday, May 26, 2018 2:54:37 AM (UTC+08:00) Kuala Lumpur, Singapore 
To: Debevoise Gramercy Land Bonds; Equipo Peru 
Subject: Gramercy Funds Management LLC and Gramercy Peru Holdings LLC v. Republic of Peru - 
UNCT/18/2 

Dear Mesdames and Sirs,  

  

I write to you on instructions from the President of the Tribunal.  

  

Please find attached a copy of the Terms of Appointment, which have been signed by the Parties and 
the Tribunal and duly certified by the President’s Assistant, in accordance with its paragraph 91. 

  

Sincerely yours,  

  

Marisa Planells-Valero 

Legal Counsel / Consejera Jurídica 

1818 H Street, NW | MSN J2-200 | Washington, DC 20433 USA 

T 202-458-9273 | F 202-522-2615/2027 | mplanellsvalero@w orldbank.org 
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I. THE PARTIES 

1. CLAIMANTS 
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I . The Claimants in this proceeding are Gramercy Funds Management LLC and 
Gramercy Peru Holdings LLC ["Claimants" or "Gramercy"], two limited liability 
companies organized under the laws of the State of Delaware (USA). Gramercy's 
address I is the following: 

Gramercy Funds Management LLC 
Gramercy Peru Holdings LLC 
c/o James P. Taylor, Esq. 
20 Dayton A venue 
Greenwich, CT 06830 
United States of America 

2. Claimants are represented by the following counsel: 

Mark W. Friedman 
Debevoise & Plimpton LLP 
919 Third A venue 
New York, New York 10022 
Telephone: +1212909 6000 
Email: mwfriedman@debevoise.com 

Gramercy LandBonds@debevoise.com 

2. RESPONDENT 

3. The Respondent is the Republic of Peru ["Respondent" or "Peru"]. Pursuant to 
Annex 10-C of the United States-Peru Free Trade Agreement signed on April 12, 
2006 [the "Treaty"], the Respondent's address in case of a dispute is the following: 

Direccion General de Asuntos de Economia Internacional 
Competencia e Inversion Privada 
Ministerio de Economia y Finanzas 
Jiron Lam pa 277, piso 5 
Lima, Peru 

4. Respondent is represented by the following counsel: 

Jonathan C. Hamilton 
White & Case LLP 
701 Thirteenth Street N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20005 
Telephone:+ 1 202 626 3600 
Email: jhamilton@whitecase.com 

equipoperu@whitecase.com 
rampuero@mef.gob.pe 

1 C-5 (Second Amended Notice of Arbitration and Statement of Claim), para. 28. 
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mguerreroa@mef.gob.pe 
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5. Claimants and Respondent will collectively be referred to as the "Parties". 

II. THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL 

1. CONSTITUTION OF THE ARBITRAL TRIBUNAL 

6. On August 5, 2016, Claimants confirmed its appointment2 as arbitrator of 

Mr. Drymer: 

Mr. Stephen L. Drymer (sdrymer@woods.qc.ca) 
Woods LLP 
2000 McGill College Ave., Suite 1700, 
Montreal, Quebec H3A 3H3, Canada 

7. On August 25, 2016, Respondent confirmed the appointment as arbitrator3 of Prof. 
Stem: 

Prof. Brigitte Stem (brigitte.stern@jstem.org) 
7, rue Pierre Nicole 
Code A1672 
75005, Paris, France 

8. On February 12, 2018, the Secretary General of the International Centre for 
Settlement of Investment Disputes ["ICSID"J , acting as appointing authority under 
Art. 10.19(3) US-Peru TPA, selected as Presiding Arbitrator ( or President): 

Juan Fernandez-Armesto Gfa@jfarmesto.com) 
Armesto & Asociados 
General Pardifias, 102, 8° izda. 
28006 Madrid (Spain) 

9. On February 13, 2018, Juan Fernandez-Armesto accepted his appointment as 
Presiding Arbitrator. 

l O. Each arbitrator has provided a Statement of Independence and Availability. 

11. By signing these Terms of Appointment, the Parties acknowledge that they agree 
to submit to this arbitration and expressly waive any objections they may have with 
respect to the constitution of the Tribunal based on available information. 

12. All notifications arising in the course of the arbitration addressed to the Tribunal 
shall be made to the abovementioned addresses. 

2 Second Amended Notice, para. 233(f). 
3 Letters from Peru to Gramercy, dated August 31 , 2016. 
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2. ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

A. Administering Authority 
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13. ICSID shall act as Administering Authority in this arbitration, rendering full 
secretariat services as provided in this section. ICSID services will include, among 
others, the following: 

(a) ICSID shall maintain an archive of filings of correspondence and 
submissions. 

(b) ICSID shall manage Party deposits to cover the costs of the arbitration, 
subject to the Tribunal's supervision. 

(c) ICSID shall carry out all the tasks regarding transparency and publicity of 
these proceedings, in accordance with .the Treaty and under the Tribunal's 
directions. 

( d) Upon request, ICSID shall carry out administrative and logistical tasks on 
behalf of the Tribunal. 

14. Work carried out by ICSID shall be billed annually in accordance with the ICSID 
Schedule of Fees in force at the time the fees are incurred. Currently, the annual fee 
for ICSID services is US$ 42,000 (forty-two thousand dollars of the United States 
of America) Work carried out by ICSID shall be paid in the same manner as the 
Tribunal's fees and expenses. 

15. The appointment of ICSID as Administering Authority shall not affect the legal 
place of arbitration, the geographical location of meetings or hearings, the 
applicable procedural rules, or other aspects of the arbitral proceedings, which shall 
remain subject to the Treaty, these Terms of Appointment, any agreement between 
the Parties, and any decisions by the Tribunal. 

B. Secretary of the Tribunal 

16. Ms. Marisa Planells-Valero, or other person as ICSID may notify the Tribunal and 
the Parties from time to time, will act as Secretary of the Tribunal in these 
proceedings. 

17. To send copies of communications by email, mail, and courier/parcel deliveries to 
the ICSID Secretariat, the contact details are: 

Marisa Planells-Valero 
ICSID 
MSN J2-200 
1818 H Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20433 
USA 
Tel.: + 1 (202) 458-9273 
Email: mplanellsvalero@worldbank.org 
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18. For local messenger deliveries, the contact details are: 

ICSID 
701 18th Street, N.W. 2nd Floor ("J Building") 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
USA 
Tel.:+ 1 (202) 458-4567 
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19. IC SID and its officials are bound by the same confidentiality duties applicable to 
the Parties and the Tribunal in this arbitration. 

C. Assistant to the President 

20. With the consent of the Parties and his co-arbitrators, the Presiding Arbitrator 
appoints the following Assistant [the "Assistant"]: 

Dr. Luis Fernando Rodriguez 
Armesto & Asociados 
General Pardifias, 102 
28006 Madrid 
Spain 
Tel.: +34 91 562 16 25 
Fax: +34 91 515 91 45 
Email: lfr@jfarmesto.com 

21 . The Assistant works for Armesto & Asociados, the same firm of arbitrators to which 
the Presiding Arbitrator belongs. Armesto & Asociados ' professional activity is 
limited to acting as arbitrators. The Parties received the Assistant' s curriculum vitae 
and declaration of independence and impartiality on April 30, 2018. 

22. The Members of the Tribunal will personally make all decisions required to 
adjudicate the merits of the present dispute and all procedural issues. To personally 
fulfill its decision-making functions, the Presiding Arbitrator may draw on the help 
of the Assistant. The Assistant's tasks will be performed upon the President's 
specific instructions, under his direct supervision and responsibility, and will not 
release the Tribunal of any of its decision-making duties. 

23. When instructed by the Presiding Arbitrator, the Assistant may perform the 
following tasks: 

Organize and maintain the President's arbitral file; 

Attend meetings, hearings and deliberations; take notes; 

Summarize submissions, review evidence and authorities, conduct legal 
research, write notes or memoranda on factual and legal issues, prepare 
preliminary drafts of decisions or sections of awards under the specific 
instruction and continuous control and supervision of the President. 
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24. The Assistant shall be bound by the same duties of confidentiality, independence 
and impartiality as the members of the Tribunal. 

25. The Presiding Arbitrator may remove the Assistant at his discretion. The Presiding 
Arbitrator will remove the Assistant ifhe ceases to work for Armesto & Asociados. 
The President may, subject to the Parties' agreement, appoint a substitute, by 
submitting to the Parties the substitute's curriculum vitae and declaration of 
independence and impartiality. 

III. NOTIFICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
\ 

26. The Parties agree that their main submissions and all other notifications and 
communications between them or among the Tribunal, the Assistant, ICSID, and 
the Parties shall be transmitted by electronic mail to the email addresses indicated 
in Sections I and II supra. 

27. The Parties agree that the periods ohime agreed by them or fixed by the Tribunal 
shall start to run on the day following the date on which a notification or 
communication is made. If the first or last day of the relevant period oftime granted 
is an official holiday or a non-business day in the country where the notification or 
communication is deemed to have been made, the period of time shall begin to run 
at the beginning of the first following business day or expire at the end of the first 
following business day. For the purpose of these proceedings, Saturdays and 
Sundays should be considered non-business days. 

28. Any Party shall immediately notify in writing the other Party and the members of 
the Tribunal of any change in its contact address. Failing such notification and 
confirmation of receipt by the Presiding Arbitrator, all communications sent to the 
above addresses shall be deemed valid. 

IV. ARBITRATION AGREEMENT 

29. The Claimants instituted this arbitration under Chapter Ten ("Investment") of the 
Treaty and, in particular, its Articles 10.16 and 10.17. 

30. Article 10.17 reads as follows: 

"Article 10.17: Consent of Each Party to Arbitration. 

1. Each Party consents to the submission of a claim to arbitration under this 
Section in accordance with this Agreement. 

2. The consent under paragraph 1 and the submission of a claim to arbitration 
under this Section shall satisfy the requirements of: 

7 
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(a) Chapter II of the ICSID Convention (Jurisdiction of the Centre) and the 
ICSID Additional Facility Rules for written consent of the parties to the 
dispute; 

(b) Article II of the New York Convention for an "agreement in writing;" and 

(c) Article I of the Inter-American Convention for an "agreement". 

31. Article 10.16 provides the following: 

"Article 10.16: Submission of a Claim to Arbitration 

1. In the event that a disputing party considers that an investment dispute 
cannot be settled by consultation and negotiation: 

(a) the claimant, on its own behalf, may submit to arbitration under this 
Section a claim 

(i) that the respondent has breached 

(A) an obligation under Section A, 

(B) an investment authorization, or 

(C) an investment agreement; 

and 

(ii) that the claimant has incurred loss or damage by reason of, or 
arising out of, that breach; and 

(b) the claimant, on behalf of an enterprise of the respondent that is a 
juridical person that the claimant owns or controls directly or indirectly, 
may submit to arbitration under this Section a claim 

(i) that the respondent has breached 

(A) an obligation under Section A, 

(B) an investment authorization, or 

(C) an investment agreement; 

and 

(ii) that the enterprise has incurred loss or damage by reason of, or 
arising out of, that breach, 

provided that a claimant may submit pursuant to subparagraph (a)(i)(C) or 
(b )(i)(C) a claim for breach of an investment agreement only if the subject 
matter of the claim and the claimed damages directly relate to the covered 
investment that was established or acquired, or sought to be established or 
acquired, in reliance on the relevant investment agreement. 
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2. At least 90 days before submitting any claim to arbitration under this 
Section, a claimant shall deliver to the respondent a written notice of its 
intention to submit the claim to arbitration ("notice of intent"). The notice 
shall specify: 

(a) the name and address of the claimant and, where a claim is submitted 
on behalf of an enterprise, the name, address, and place of incorporation of 
the enterprise; 

(b) for each claim, the prov1s10n of this Agreement, investment 
authorization, or investment agreement alleged to have been breached and 
any other relevant provisions; 

( c) the legal and factual basis for each claim; and 

( d) the relief sought and the approximate amount of damages claimed. 

3. Provided that six months have elapsed since the events giving rise to the 
claim, a claimant may submit a claim referred to in paragraph 1: 

(a) under the ICSID Convention and the ICSID Rules of Procedures for 
Arbitration Proceedings, provided that both the respondent and the Party 
of the claimant are parties to the ICSID Convention; 

(b) under the IC SID Additional Facility Rules, provided that either the 
respondent or the Party of the claimant is a party to the IC SID Convention; 

( c) under the UNCITRAL Arbitration Rules; or 

(d) if the claimant and respondent agree, to any other arbitration institution 
or under any other arbitration rules. 

4. A claim shall be deemed submitted to arbitration under this Section 
when the claimant's notice of or request for arbitration ("notice of 
arbitration"): 

(a) referred to in paragraph 1 of Article 36 of the ICSID Convention is 
received by the Secretary-General; 

(b) referred to in Article 2 of Schedule C of the IC SID Additional Facility 
Rules is received by the Secretary-General; 

( c) referred to in Article 3 of the UNCITRAL Arbitration Rules, together 
with the statement of claim referred to in Article 18 of the UNCITRAL 
Arbitration Rules, are received by the respondent; or 

( d) referred to under any arbitral institution or arbitral rules selected under 
paragraph 3(d) is received by the respondent. 

A claim asserted by the claimant for the first time after such notice of 
arbitration is submitted shall be deemed submitted to arbitration under this 
Section on the date of its receipt under the applicable arbitral rules. 
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Date: 22 May 2018 

Gramercy v. Peru 
Terms of Appointment 

May 22, 2018 



Brigitte Stern 
Co-Arbitrator 

Date: .22 l'"\oj ~Ci I g 
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